IFA Conduit Plus Committee Meeting - April 12, 2022

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

| LLI NO' S FI NANCE AUTHORI TY
CONDUI T FI NANCI NG COW TTEE MEETI NG

REPORT OF PROCEEDI NGS of the Special Meeting of

the Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Fi nancing

Committee HELD I N PERSON and VIA AUDI O and

VI DEOCONFERENCE on Tuesday, April 12, 2022, at

8: 31

a. m

PRESENT VI A AUDI O- AND VI DEOCONFERENCE:

ALSO

COW TTEE CHAI R JEFFREY WRI GHT

MEMBER JAMES FUENTES

MEMBER TI' M RYAN

MEMBER EDUARDO TOBON

MEMBER JENNI FER WATSON

MEMBER BRAD ZELLER

CHAI RMVAN W LL HOBERT ex officio, nonvoting
PRESENT:

MARK MEYER, Assistant Secretary

RI CH FRAMPTON, Executive Vice President

CHRI STOPHER MEI STER, Executive Director (in person
and via audi o and vi deo conference)

SARA PERUG NI, Vice President, Healthcare/ CCRC
LORRI E KARCHER, Agri cul ture Program Coor di nat or
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COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Good norning. This is
Jeffrey Wight. Chair of the Illinois Finance
Commttee, Finance Authority Conduit Finance Commttee.
| would like to call the neeting to order.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Good norning. This
Is Mark Meyer, Assistant Secretary of the Authority.
Today's date is Tuesday, April 12, 2022, and this is a
speci al neeting of The Authority's Conduit Financing
Commttee, has been called to order by Chair Wight at
the tinme of 8:31 a. m

The Governor of the State of Illinois
| ssued a gubernatorial disaster proclamation on
April 1, 2022, finding that pursuant to the provisions
of the Illinois Enmergency Managenent Agency Act, a
di saster exists within the State of Illinois related to
public health concerns caused by COVI D-19, declaring
all counties in the State of Illinois as a disaster
area, which remains in effect for 30 days fromits
| ssuance date. |In accordance with the provisions of
Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act,
as anended, the Chair of the Authority, WII| Hobert,
has determ ned that an in-person neeting of the
Authority and all of its commttees today, April 12,

2022, is not practical or prudent because of the
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di saster declared. Therefore this neeting is being
conducted via video and audi o conference w thout the

physi cal presence of a quorum of the nenbers. The

Executive Director, Chris Meister, is currently in The

Aut hority's Chicago office at the [ ocation of the
nmeeting and is also participating video and audio
conference. All nenbers wll attend this neeting via
video or audio conference. As we take the roll calls,
the response of the nenbers wll be taken as an
I ndi cation that they can hear all nenbers, discussion,
and testinony.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
Thank you, Mark. WII the Assistant Secretary pl ease
call the roll?

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Certainly. This is
Mark Meyer, with all nenbers attending via video or
audi o conference, | wll call the roll.

Menber Fuentes.

MEMBER FUENTES: Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Juracek.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR MElI STER:  Menber Juracek
advi sed nme that she was going to be running | ate.
Thank you. This is Chris Meister.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Ryan.
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MEMBER RYAN:. Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON: Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Wat son.

MEMBER WATSON:  Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Menber Zeller.

MEMBER ZELLER:  Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER Comm ttee Chair
Wi ght.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT:  Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  And Chair Hobert
ex-of ficio, non-voting.

CHAl R HOBERT: Here.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again, this is
Mark Meyer. Commttee Chair Wight, in accordance with
Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the OQpen Meetings Act as
anmended, a quorum of The Authority's Conduit Fi nancing
Comm ttee has been constituted. Before we begi n making
our way through today's agenda, | would |ike to request
t hat each Menber nmute their audi o when possible to
el i m nate any background noi se unl ess you' re naki ng, or
seconding a notion, voting, or otherw se providi ng any
comrent for the record. |If you are participating via

vi deo, pl ease use your nute button found on your task
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bar on the bottom of your screen. You wll be able to
see the control bar by noving your nouse or touching
the screen of your tablet. For any Menber or anyone
fromthe public participating via phone, to nute and
unmute your line. You may press Star-6 on your keypad
I f you do not have that feature on your phone.

As a rem nder, we are being recorded
and a court reporter is transcribing today's
proceedi ngs. For the consideration of the court
reporter, | would also |like to ask each Menber to state
t heir nane before nmaking or seconding a notion or
ot herw se providing any comments for the record.

Finally, I would like to confirmthat
all menbers of the public attending in-person or via
video or audi o conference can hear this neeting
clearly.

Chris, can you confirmthat the video
and audi o conference is clearly heard at the physi cal
| ocati on of the neeting?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR MElI STER  Thank you very nuch,

Mark. This is Executive Director Chris Meister. |I'm
physically present in the conference roomon the tenth
floor of 160 North LaSalle Street in Chicago, Illinois.

| can confirmthat | can hear all di scussions,
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presentations, and votes at this norning s neeting
| ocation. |'ve advised security on the first floor
that we have three public neetings today, of which this
Is one. The agendas for all three neetings have been
posted both on this floor and on the first floor of
this building and on the Authority's website as of | ast
Thur sday, April 7, 2022. Building security has been
advi sed that any nenbers of the public who choose to do
so and who choose to conply with the building' s public
heal th and safety requirenents nay cone to this room
and be physically present to listen to this norning's
proceedi ngs. At the nonent, | am alone and there are
no nmenbers of the public physically present wth ne.
Thank you.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  This is Mark Meyer.
Thank you, Chris. [|f any nenbers of the public
participating via video or audi o conference find that
t hey cannot hear these proceedings clearly, please call
(312) 651-1300, or wite info@l|-fa.comimedi ately to
| et us know and we wi ||l endeavor to solve the audio
| ssue.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
Thank you Mark. Next on the agenda is public coment.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: This is Mark Meyer.
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| f anyone fromthe public participating via video

w shes to nake a comment, please indicate your desire
to do so by using the "Raise Hand" function. dick on
the "Rai se Hand" option |ocated at the center of your
control bar at the bottom of your screen. You'll be
able to see the task bar by noving your nouse or
touching the screen of your tablet. |If anyone fromthe
public participating via the phone w shes to nake a
comrent, please indicate your desire to do so by using
the "Rai se Hand" function by pressing Star-9.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
| s there any public comment for the comnmttee?

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing none, | would
now | i ke to ask for the general consent of the nenbers
to consider New Business Itens 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6
collectively, and to have the subsequent recorded vote
applied to each respective individual New Busi ness
Item unless there are any specific New Business |tens
that a Menber would like to consider separately.

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing no need of a

recusal, | would like to consider New Business Itens 1,

2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 under the consent agenda and take a
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roll call vote.
M. Franpton.

MR. FRAMPTON: This is Rich Franpton. Thank you,
Commttee Chair Wight. | will begin with Conduit
Busi ness Item 1 for Lake Forest College. Item1l is a
501(c)(3) Bond Request. Staff requests approval of a
one-tinme Final Bond Resolution for Lake Forest Coll ege
(hereinafter, also, the "College") in an anount
not -t o-exceed $50 mllion. The Bond Resolution wl|
aut hori ze the Bonds to be issued in one or nore series
or sub-series and be used to prospectively refund all
or a portion of the outstandi ng bal ances of three
t ax- exenpt bond issues including the College's | FA
Series 2008, IFA Series 2012, and | FA Series 2014
bonds. The aggregate outstandi ng bal ances of these
bonds currently total approximately $31.5 mllion. 1In
addition to these prospective refundi ngs, the Bond
Resol ution authorizes bond proceeds to be used to (1)
repay all or a portion of a taxable bridge |oan and (2)
provide up to $17 mllion of new noney financing for
vari ous capital construction projects, including canpus
academ c buil di ngs, and residence halls, along with
ot her m scel | aneous i nprovenents canpusw de.

Bonds will be sold in a public offering
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by Bof A Securities based on Lake Forest College's
rating. The college is applying to S&P G obal Rati ngs
for Arating on the Series 2022 Bonds and the Col |l ege's
Series 2012 Bonds are currently rated BBB- by S&P.

Lake Forest College is a private
co- educati onal higher education institution established
i n 1857 focused on liberal arts, business, health
sci ences, and pre-professional education wth
enrol I ment of approximately 1690 students as of fall
2021, that's up from 1492 in fall 2018, a 13 percent
| ncr ease.

Next noving to the confidential section
of the report on PDF page 11, which is page 8 of the
report. There are two additional coments to note from
the confidential section. First, Lake Forest Coll ege
has a strong commtnent to providi ng needs- based
tuition support. That commtnent is evidenced in the
di fference between gross tuition, which is reported in
spreadsheet Row 1, and net to after financial aid,
which is reported in spreadsheet Row 2. Secondly, the
spreadsheet and the PDF page 12 comments note that,
based on nunbers runs prepared | ast week by the
financing team paynents on the Series 2022 Bonds,

whi ch assunes all $17 mllion of proposed new noney
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bonds are issued, would reduce the college's annual
debt service paynents by $125, 000 per annum goi ng
forward based on the proposed 30-year anorti zation
assunpti on.

Does any Menber have any questions or
comrent s?

Next, I'll nove on to Item 2 for Howard
Brown Health Center. Item2 is a 501(c)(3) Bond
request. Staff requests approval of a Final Bond
Resol ution for Howard Brown Health Center (hereinafter
the "Borrower"”) in an anmount not-to-exceed $47 mllion.

Bond proceeds wll be used to provide
all or a portion of the funds necessary to (1) pay or
rei mburse a portion of the costs of |and acquisition,
bui | di ng construction, and equi pping of a new
approxi mately 73, 000-square-foot, five-story nedical
and office building to be owned by the Borrower at 3501
North Hal sted Street in Chicago, refinance certain
| ndebt edness previously incurred at its primary care
facility |located at 6500 (inaudible) and (c) pay costs
of issuance, and other costs related to the Bond all as
permtted under the Illinois Finance Authority Act.

THE COURT REPORTER: Excuse ne. This is the

court reporter. You cut out on the address 6500, then

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 10
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It went bl ank.

MR FRAMPTON. COkay. 6500 North Cark Street in
Chi cago. And (c) pay costs of issuance and other costs
related to the Bond all as permtted under the Illinois
Fi nance Authority Act.

Howard Brown Heal th provides
conpr ehensi ve heal thcare and social services to a broad
community with a focus on | esbian, gay, bi-sexual,
transgender and queer or "LGBTQ' comunities at
mul tiple | ocations throughout Chicago and has been a
nati onal | eader in engaging in nedical research to
| nprove healthcare and treatnents for di seases
I ncl udi ng hepatitis B and H V/ Al DS.

Wntrust wll be the purchasi ng bank
for the Series 2022 Bond and will be assum ng all
default risk. Wth respect to jobs, Howard Brown
projects (1) a total of 360 construction jobs during
the 16-nonth construction period and (2) 69 new hires
wthin two years of conpleting the 3501 North Hal sted
facility.

Movi ng on to the confidential section.
The financial presentation begins on Conduit PDF
page 20, which is page 7 of the report. Net patient

revenues have conprised 88 percent of Howard Brown's
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operating revenues and have been the principal driver
of revenue growth, which has gone froma 171 mllion in
2019 to 211 mllion in 2021. Expanded services and
capacity, including the opening of a new youth center
I n 2021, have also driven this recent growth. Through
managenent's diligent control of operating expenses,
Howard Brown's operating net incone, EBIDTA and debt
servi ce coverage have each inproved despite this rapid
revenue growth. In particular, Howard Brown's debt
service coverage has inproved froman already strong
6.85 tinmes in 2019 to over 12 times coverage in 2021.
Howard Brown's successful nmnanagenent of this rapid
growt h has al so been evi denced by i nproving bal ance
sheet strength, as evidenced by inproving days cash and
I nvest nent bal ances, which have inproved from 131 days
as of June 30, 2019, to 185 days, just over 6 nonths
cash, as of June 30, 2021. Does any Menber have any
questions or comments?
(No verbal response.)

MR, FRAMPTON. Thank you. Wth that, 1'll hand
things over to Sara for discussion of [tem 3.

M5. PERUG NI :  Thanks, Rich. Good norning. This
Is Sara Perugini. And Item Nunber 3 in your packet,
whi ch starts on page 23 of the Conduit PDF, is the

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 12



IFA Conduit Plus Committee Meeting - April 12, 2022

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

final Resolution for a not-to-exceed anount of
37.5 mllion for Westm nster Village, Inc., who is the
Bor r ower .

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used
to (1) pay or reinburse the Borrower for or refinance,
the cost of acquiring, constructing, renovating,
renodel i ng, and equi pping the Borrower's conti nui ng
care retirenent comunity at an approxi mate anount of
$1 mllion; (2) refund all or a portion of the Series
2018B and/or Series 2018C Bonds, (collectively the
"Prior Bonds"); (3) pay a portion of interest on the
Bonds and/ or establish a debt service reserve fund each
| f deened necessary or desirable by the Authority
and/ or the Borrower; (4) termnate two exi sting swaps
on the Prior Bonds; and (5) pay certain fees or
expenses incurred in connection wth the refunding of
the Prior Bonds and the issuance of the Bonds. This is
the first tinme this has been presented to the Menbers
and it is a one-tine final Resolution.

The Borrower operates Westm nster
Village, a continuing care retirenent community | ocated
in Bloom ngton, Illinois. Wstmnster Village consists
of 243 independent living units, 60 assisted |iving

units, 12 nenory support units and 96 skilled nursing
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1| beds. The plan of finance contenpl ates the issuance of
2| bonds in one or nore fixed rate, tax-exenpt series that
3] will be sold in a public offering underwitten by

4|1 Ziegler Investnent Bank and sold in m ni num dom nati ons
5| of $5,000. The Bonds will not be rated.

6 As fully discussed under board action

7| on page 25 of the PDF, the Borrower is asking for a

8 | waiver of the Board policy set forth in the Authority

9 | Bond handbook, which requires nonrated bonds be only

10| sold to accredited investors or qualified institutional
11 | buyers in mninum denom nations of a $100,000. The

12 | Borrower has informed the Authority that the Borrower
13| will satisfy the conditions for such waiver because the
14| Borrower is not currently in default on any bonds, the
15| Borrower has not m ssed a paynent date relative to any
16 | bonds in the imedi ately preceding three years, and the
17| Borrower has issued in the imedi ately precedi ng seven
18 | years, specifically in 2017 and 2018, two series of

19 | bonds that were nonrated or rated bel ow i nvest nent

20 | grade, in an aggregate total of not |ess than

21| $40 mllion,

22 The Fi nal Bond Resol ution establishes
23| an interest rate of not-to-exceed 6 percent on the

24 | Bonds. As of March 17, 2022, the Bonds wll be issued

Bridges Court Reporting Page: 14
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1| as fixed-rate bonds at an estimated coupon rate of

2| 5 percent and a current estinmated average yield to cal
3| of 4.25 percent.

4 Turning to page 30 of the PDF, you wll
5| find the confidential information starting with the

6| Authority's fee. Followi ng are the audited financi al

7| statenents and di scussion of such financials. As I

8 | mentioned earlier in the presentation, the Borrower

9| issued bonds in 2017 and 2018 through the Authority,

10 | and those bonds were used to fund construction,

11| renovation, and expansion of all types of units on its
12 | canpus. Many of these units were placed into service
13| in 2020 and 2021, which was unfortunate timng in |light
14| of COVID. The financials reflect the Borrower not

15| hitting its forecasted fill-up periods as well as

16 | | osing occupants during COVID. Due to debt service

17| coverage ratio of 1.15 for fiscal year 2021, the

18 | Borrower called in a consultant, and the report was

19 | posted on EMVA in Cctober 2021.

20 Managenent continues to work diligently
21| to stabilize and increase occupancy across canpus and
221 fill its newy expanded area. COCccupancy and fil

23 | trends have been positive in the six-nonth period ended

24 | Decenber 31, 2020, and are in line with the
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consultant's forecasted projections. Does any Menber
have any comments or questions?

(No verbal response.)

M5. PERUG NI :  Thank you.
MR. FRAMPTON: This is R ch Franpton. Thank you,

Sar a.

Next we'll nove on to the Conduit
Fi nanci ng Resol utions, beginning with Item4 for
CenterPoint Termnal Railroad LLC. Item4 is a
Resolution relating to the | FA Series 2020 Bonds issued
on behalf of CenterPoint Joliet Termnal Railroad LLC
(hereinafter "CenterPoint") which financed a portion of
the construction, build-out and equi pnent costs
I ncurred in connection with the devel opnent of the
CenterPoint Internodal Center-Joliet project. The
$150 mlIlion Series 2020 Bonds were purchased initially
by a multi-bank syndicate that included U.S. Bank,
Nat i onal Associ ation, Regions Bank, N A, and PNC Bank,
N. A as the direct bond purchasers (and, collectively,
herei nafter the "Lenders").

The acconpanyi ng Resolution w |
aut hori ze the Authority to execute and deliver a First
Amendnent to the Indenture of Trust between the

Authority and U. S. Bank Trust Conpany, National
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Association resulting fromanendnents of the Bank
Agreenment between CenterPoint and the Lenders. The
anmendnents to the Bank Agreenent will anmend certain
definitions to replace current LIBOR-based index rate
definitions with new SOFR- based i ndex rate definitions
as well as adjusting applicable margins.

The practical effect of the requested
changes in the Bank Agreenent wll be to provide
CenterPoint with a new SOFR-based interest rate plus a
credit spread for its next interest rate period of
three years. The new interest rate period of three
years will also provide for two additional one-year
extensi on options. As proposed, the newterns wll
becone effective as of June 4, 2022. That is the
expiration date of the initial two-year interest rate
peri od established in 2020.

As a result of the First Amendnent to
the I ndenture of Trust, the Series 2020 Bonds w |l be
deened rei ssued for federal tax purposes. Perkins
Coie LLP is expected to provide an opinion that the
amendnents w Il not adversely affect the tax-exenpt
status of the Series 2020 Bonds.

The third section heading on page 2 of

the nmeno highlights the projected conbi ned econom c
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| npact of CenterPoint's Joliet and El wood i nt er nodal
facilities over their 30-plus year build-out period.
CenterPoint projects that over 7750 direct on-site jobs
at the internodal facilities will ultimately be created
by on-site enployers at ClCJoliet and Cl C El wood at
full build-out. Does any Menber have any questions or
comrent s?

(No verbal response.)

MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you.

M5. PERUG NI: Thanks, Rich. This is Sara
Perugini again. |Item Nunber 5 in your packet, which
starts on page 39 of the PDF is a Resolution for the
Lodge of Northbrook, the Borrower, which details
amendnents it would like to make with respect to its
Series 2013 Bond and Series 2017 Bond, and acconpanyi ng
docunent. The Bonds were issued pursuant to a single
Trust | ndenture.

Al of the Bonds were purchased and are
currently held by G eat Western Bank. The Borrower and
Great Western Bank have agreed to anend the Series 2013
Bond, Series 2017 Bond, and the Indenture to, anobng
ot her things, reduce the interest rate of the Bonds
until the next adjustnent date, to adjust the interest

rate floor, to elimnate the optional prepaynent
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premum and to nodify the debt service reserve fund
restriction. The proposed Authority Resol ution
approves supplenents to the Indenture, reissuance of
t he Bond, and the execution by the Authority of any
addi tional docunents necessary in order to inplenent
t he amendnents and to evi dence the approval of the
amendnment .

The supplenents to the Indenture are
aut hori zed by the existing terns of the I|Indenture.
Great Western Bank w || approve the anmendnents by
executing the anendnent instrunent.

These anendnents may result in the
Bonds as being treated as reissued for federal tax
purposes. Baird Holmis expected to provide an opi nion
that the anmendnents will not adversely affect the
t ax- exenpt status of the Bonds. The Authority's
estimated fee and the Borrower's financials are al so
I ncl uded. Does any Menber have any questions or
conment s?

(No verbal response.)

M5. PERUGANI: Wth that, I'Il turn things over
to Lorrie for Item Nunmber 6.
MR. FRAMPTON: This is Rich Franpton. Lorrie had

| ndi cat ed she was havi ng sone technical issues. So |
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Wi Il proceed to present Item 6.

Item 6 is a request from M. Daniel N
Feucht (hereinafter, the "Borrower") and the State Bank
of Toul on (the "Bank") to seek the Authority's consent
for the release of approximately 3.29 acres of farm and
upon the Borrower's sale of that property. The
Borrower closed on the purchase of 17.76 acres of
farmand in Stark County on Decenber 22, 2021, with
proceeds of $64,500 of |FA Beginning Farnmer Bonds
purchased by the Bank as the direct |ender/investor.

The Borrower has negotiated for the
sal e of the non-contiguous 3.29-acre parcel for the
sanme anmount as in his recent bond-financed purchase.
Hence, M. Feucht will not have any reported gains or
| osses as a result of this disposition of property.
The acconpanyi ng Resol ution authorizes the Authority to
consent to the release of a portion of the nortgaged
property as requested by the Bank and Borrower. Does
any Menber have questions or conments?

(No verbal response.)

MR, FRAMPTON. Thank you. Wth that, I'll hand
t hi ngs back over to Commttee Chair Wight.
COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.

Thank you, everyone. | would Iike to request a notion
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1| to recommend for approval the foll owm ng New Busi ness
2] Items: Itens 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6. |Is there such a

3| notion?

4 VMEMBER FUENTES: This is Jim Fuentes. So noved.
S MEMBER RYAN: This is Tim Ryan. Second.
6 COMWM TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: WI I the Assi stant

7| Secretary please call the roll?
8 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: This is Mark Meyer.
9| On the notion by Menber Fuentes and second by Menber

10 Ryan. | will call the roll.

11 M. Fuentes.

12 MEMBER FUENTES:. Yes.

13 ASS|I STANT SECRETARY MEYER: M. Ryan.

14 MEMBER RYAN:. Yes.

15 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER M. Tobon.

16 VMEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

17 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Ms. Wat son.

18 MEMBER WATSON:  Yes.

19 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER M. Zeller.

20 MEMBER ZELLER:  Yes.

21 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER Comm ttee Chair
22 | Wight.

23 COW TTEE CHAI R WRI GHT:  Yes.

24 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again, this is
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1| Mark Meyer, Commttee Chair Wight? The ayes have it

2| and the notion carries.

3 COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.

4| Thank you, Mark. Does anyone w sh to nmake any

S| additions, edits, or corrections in the mnutes from

6| March 8, 20227

7 (No verbal response.)
8 COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing none, | would
9] like to request a notion to approve the m nutes.

10 | there such a notion?

11 VMEMBER TOBON: This is Eduardo Tobon. So noved.
12 VMEMBER WATSON: This is Jennifer Watson. Second.
13 COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.

14| WIIl the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

15 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  This is Mark Meyer on

16 | the notion by Menber Tobon and second by Menber Watson.

171 1 wll call the roll.

18 M. Fuentes.

19 MEMBER FUENTES:. Yes.

20 ASS|I STANT SECRETARY MEYER: M. Ryan.

21 MEMBER RYAN:. Yes.

22 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER M. Tobon.
23 VMEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

24 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Ms. Wat son?

Bridges Court Reporting

Page: 22



IFA Conduit Plus Committee Meeting - April 12, 2022

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

MEMBER WATSON:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER M. Zeller.

MEMBER ZELLER:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER Commttee Chair
Wi ght.

COW TTEE CHAI R WRI GHT:  Yes.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again this is
Mark Meyer. Commttee Chair Wight? The ayes have it
and the notion carries.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght.
Thank you, Mark. |Is there any other business to cone
before the commttee?

(No verbal response.)

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Hearing none, | would
li ke to request a notion to adjourn. Additionally,
when responding to the roll call for this notion, |
woul d ask each Menber to confirmthat they were able to
hear the participants, discussions, and testinony of
this proceeding. |Is there such a notion?

MEMBER ZELLER: This is Brad Zeller. So noved.

MEMBER TOBON: This is Eduardo Tobon. Second.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: This is Jeffrey Wi ght
w il the Assistant Secretary, please call the roll.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: This is Mark Meyer.
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On the notion by Menber Zeller and second by Menber
Tobon. | wll call the roll.
M. Fuentes.

MEMBER FUENTES: Aye, and | confirmthat | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: M. Ryan.

MEMBER RYAN: Aye, and | confirmthat | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER M. Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON: Aye, and | confirmthat | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER: Ms. Wat son.

MEMBER WATSON:  Aye, and | confirmthat | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER M. Zeller.

MEMBER ZELLER: Aye, and | confirmthat | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testinony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER Comm ttee Chair
Wi ght.

COW TTEE CHAIR WRI GHT: Aye, and | confirmthat
| could hear all participants, discussion, and
t esti nony.

ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Chair Hobert,

ex officio nonvoti ng.
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1 CHAIR HOBERT: | confirmthat | could hear al

2| participants, discussion, and testinony.

3 ASSI STANT SECRETARY MEYER  Again, this is

41 Mark Meyer. Committee Chair Wight, the ayes have it,
5| and the notion carries. The tinme is 8:59 a.m, and the

6| commttee neeting is adjourned.

8 (WHEREUPON, the above-entitled matter

9 was adjourned at 8:59 a.m)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
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1| STATE OF ILLINO S )

) SS.
2 | COUNTY OF DUPACE )
3
4 M chael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath

5| says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing

6| business in the Gty of Weaton, County of DuPage and

7| State of Illinois.
8 That he reported the proceedi ngs had at the
9| foregoing Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Conmmttee

10 | Special Meeting of the Menbers.

11 And that the foregoing is a true and correct

12| transcript of the reported proceedi ngs so taken

13 | aforesaid and contains all the proceedings had at said
14 | neeti ng.

15
16 MWW@/

17 M chael J. Duffy

18 Certified Electronic Reporter

19 Not ary Public

20
21
22
23

24
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 01                ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

 02            CONDUIT FINANCING COMMITTEE MEETING

 03  

 04        REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS of the Special Meeting of

 05  the Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Financing

 06  Committee HELD IN PERSON and VIA AUDIO- and

 07  VIDEOCONFERENCE on Tuesday, April 12, 2022, at

 08  8:31 a.m.

 09  

 10  PRESENT VIA AUDIO- AND VIDEOCONFERENCE:

 11       COMMITTEE CHAIR JEFFREY WRIGHT

 12       MEMBER JAMES FUENTES

 13       MEMBER TIM RYAN

 14       MEMBER EDUARDO TOBON

 15       MEMBER JENNIFER WATSON

 16       MEMBER BRAD ZELLER

 17       CHAIRMAN WILL HOBERT ex officio, nonvoting

 18  ALSO PRESENT:

 19       MARK MEYER, Assistant Secretary

 20       RICH FRAMPTON, Executive Vice President

 21       CHRISTOPHER MEISTER, Executive Director (in person

 22       and via audio and video conference)

 23       SARA PERUGINI, Vice President, Healthcare/CCRC

 24       LORRIE KARCHER, Agriculture Program Coordinator
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 01        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Good morning.  This is

 02  Jeffrey Wright.  Chair of the Illinois Finance

 03  Committee, Finance Authority Conduit Finance Committee.

 04  I would like to call the meeting to order.

 05        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Good morning.  This

 06  is Mark Meyer, Assistant Secretary of the Authority.

 07  Today's date is Tuesday, April 12, 2022, and this is a

 08  special meeting of The Authority's Conduit Financing

 09  Committee, has been called to order by Chair Wright at

 10  the time of 8:31 a.m.

 11                  The Governor of the State of Illinois

 12  issued a gubernatorial disaster proclamation on

 13  April 1, 2022, finding that pursuant to the provisions

 14  of the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act, a

 15  disaster exists within the State of Illinois related to

 16  public health concerns caused by COVID-19, declaring

 17  all counties in the State of Illinois as a disaster

 18  area, which remains in effect for 30 days from its

 19  issuance date.  In accordance with the provisions of

 20  Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act,

 21  as amended, the Chair of the Authority, Will Hobert,

 22  has determined that an in-person meeting of the

 23  Authority and all of its committees today, April 12,

 24  2022, is not practical or prudent because of the
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 01  disaster declared.  Therefore this meeting is being

 02  conducted via video and audio conference without the

 03  physical presence of a quorum of the members.  The

 04  Executive Director, Chris Meister, is currently in The

 05  Authority's Chicago office at the location of the

 06  meeting and is also participating video and audio

 07  conference.  All members will attend this meeting via

 08  video or audio conference.  As we take the roll calls,

 09  the response of the members will be taken as an

 10  indication that they can hear all members, discussion,

 11  and testimony.

 12        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 13  Thank you, Mark.  Will the Assistant Secretary please

 14  call the roll?

 15        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Certainly.  This is

 16  Mark Meyer, with all members attending via video or

 17  audio conference, I will call the roll.

 18                  Member Fuentes.

 19        MEMBER FUENTES:  Here.

 20        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Juracek.

 21        EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEISTER:  Member Juracek

 22  advised me that she was going to be running late.

 23  Thank you.  This is Chris Meister.

 24        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Ryan.

�0004

 01        MEMBER RYAN:  Here.

 02        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Tobon.

 03        MEMBER TOBON:  Here.

 04        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Watson.

 05        MEMBER WATSON:  Here.

 06        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Member Zeller.

 07        MEMBER ZELLER:  Here.

 08        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Committee Chair

 09  Wright.

 10        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Here.

 11        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  And Chair Hobert

 12  ex-officio, non-voting.

 13        CHAIR HOBERT:  Here.

 14        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again, this is

 15  Mark Meyer.  Committee Chair Wright, in accordance with

 16  Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act as

 17  amended, a quorum of The Authority's Conduit Financing

 18  Committee has been constituted.  Before we begin making

 19  our way through today's agenda, I would like to request

 20  that each Member mute their audio when possible to

 21  eliminate any background noise unless you're making, or

 22  seconding a motion, voting, or otherwise providing any

 23  comment for the record.  If you are participating via

 24  video, please use your mute button found on your task
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 01  bar on the bottom of your screen.  You will be able to

 02  see the control bar by moving your mouse or touching

 03  the screen of your tablet.  For any Member or anyone

 04  from the public participating via phone, to mute and

 05  unmute your line.  You may press Star-6 on your keypad

 06  if you do not have that feature on your phone.

 07                  As a reminder, we are being recorded

 08  and a court reporter is transcribing today's

 09  proceedings.  For the consideration of the court

 10  reporter, I would also like to ask each Member to state

 11  their name before making or seconding a motion or

 12  otherwise providing any comments for the record.

 13                  Finally, I would like to confirm that

 14  all members of the public attending in-person or via

 15  video or audio conference can hear this meeting

 16  clearly.

 17                  Chris, can you confirm that the video

 18  and audio conference is clearly heard at the physical

 19  location of the meeting?

 20        EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEISTER:  Thank you very much,

 21  Mark.  This is Executive Director Chris Meister.  I'm

 22  physically present in the conference room on the tenth

 23  floor of 160 North LaSalle Street in Chicago, Illinois.

 24  I can confirm that I can hear all discussions,
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 01  presentations, and votes at this morning's meeting

 02  location.  I've advised security on the first floor

 03  that we have three public meetings today, of which this

 04  is one.  The agendas for all three meetings have been

 05  posted both on this floor and on the first floor of

 06  this building and on the Authority's website as of last

 07  Thursday, April 7, 2022.  Building security has been

 08  advised that any members of the public who choose to do

 09  so and who choose to comply with the building's public

 10  health and safety requirements may come to this room

 11  and be physically present to listen to this morning's

 12  proceedings.  At the moment, I am alone and there are

 13  no members of the public physically present with me.

 14  Thank you.

 15        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.

 16  Thank you, Chris.  If any members of the public

 17  participating via video or audio conference find that

 18  they cannot hear these proceedings clearly, please call

 19  (312) 651-1300, or write info@il-fa.com immediately to

 20  let us know and we will endeavor to solve the audio

 21  issue.

 22        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 23  Thank you Mark.  Next on the agenda is public comment.

 24        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.
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 01  If anyone from the public participating via video

 02  wishes to make a comment, please indicate your desire

 03  to do so by using the "Raise Hand" function.  Click on

 04  the "Raise Hand" option located at the center of your

 05  control bar at the bottom of your screen.  You'll be

 06  able to see the task bar by moving your mouse or

 07  touching the screen of your tablet.  If anyone from the

 08  public participating via the phone wishes to make a

 09  comment, please indicate your desire to do so by using

 10  the "Raise Hand" function by pressing Star-9.

 11        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 12  Is there any public comment for the committee?

 13                  (No verbal response.)

 14        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing none, I would

 15  now like to ask for the general consent of the members

 16  to consider New Business Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6

 17  collectively, and to have the subsequent recorded vote

 18  applied to each respective individual New Business

 19  Item, unless there are any specific New Business Items

 20  that a Member would like to consider separately.

 21                  (No verbal response.)

 22        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing no need of a

 23  recusal, I would like to consider New Business Items 1,

 24  2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 under the consent agenda and take a
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 01  roll call vote.

 02                  Mr. Frampton.

 03        MR. FRAMPTON:  This is Rich Frampton.  Thank you,

 04  Committee Chair Wright.  I will begin with Conduit

 05  Business Item 1 for Lake Forest College.  Item 1 is a

 06  501(c)(3) Bond Request.  Staff requests approval of a

 07  one-time Final Bond Resolution for Lake Forest College

 08  (hereinafter, also, the "College") in an amount

 09  not-to-exceed $50 million.  The Bond Resolution will

 10  authorize the Bonds to be issued in one or more series

 11  or sub-series and be used to prospectively refund all

 12  or a portion of the outstanding balances of three

 13  tax-exempt bond issues including the College's IFA

 14  Series 2008, IFA Series 2012, and IFA Series 2014

 15  bonds.  The aggregate outstanding balances of these

 16  bonds currently total approximately $31.5 million.  In

 17  addition to these prospective refundings, the Bond

 18  Resolution authorizes bond proceeds to be used to (1)

 19  repay all or a portion of a taxable bridge loan and (2)

 20  provide up to $17 million of new money financing for

 21  various capital construction projects, including campus

 22  academic buildings, and residence halls, along with

 23  other miscellaneous improvements campuswide.

 24                  Bonds will be sold in a public offering
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 01  by BofA Securities based on Lake Forest College's

 02  rating.  The college is applying to S&P Global Ratings

 03  for A rating on the Series 2022 Bonds and the College's

 04  Series 2012 Bonds are currently rated BBB- by S&P.

 05                  Lake Forest College is a private

 06  co-educational higher education institution established

 07  in 1857 focused on liberal arts, business, health

 08  sciences, and pre-professional education with

 09  enrollment of approximately 1690 students as of fall

 10  2021, that's up from 1492 in fall 2018, a 13 percent

 11  increase.

 12                  Next moving to the confidential section

 13  of the report on PDF page 11, which is page 8 of the

 14  report.  There are two additional comments to note from

 15  the confidential section.  First, Lake Forest College

 16  has a strong commitment to providing needs-based

 17  tuition support.  That commitment is evidenced in the

 18  difference between gross tuition, which is reported in

 19  spreadsheet Row 1, and net to after financial aid,

 20  which is reported in spreadsheet Row 2.  Secondly, the

 21  spreadsheet and the PDF page 12 comments note that,

 22  based on numbers runs prepared last week by the

 23  financing team, payments on the Series 2022 Bonds,

 24  which assumes all $17 million of proposed new money
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 01  bonds are issued, would reduce the college's annual

 02  debt service payments by $125,000 per annum going

 03  forward based on the proposed 30-year amortization

 04  assumption.

 05                  Does any Member have any questions or

 06  comments?

 07                  Next, I'll move on to Item 2 for Howard

 08  Brown Health Center.  Item 2 is a 501(c)(3) Bond

 09  request.  Staff requests approval of a Final Bond

 10  Resolution for Howard Brown Health Center (hereinafter

 11  the "Borrower") in an amount not-to-exceed $47 million.

 12                  Bond proceeds will be used to provide

 13  all or a portion of the funds necessary to (1) pay or

 14  reimburse a portion of the costs of land acquisition,

 15  building construction, and equipping of a new

 16  approximately 73,000-square-foot, five-story medical

 17  and office building to be owned by the Borrower at 3501

 18  North Halsted Street in Chicago, refinance certain

 19  indebtedness previously incurred at its primary care

 20  facility located at 6500 (inaudible) and (c) pay costs

 21  of issuance, and other costs related to the Bond all as

 22  permitted under the Illinois Finance Authority Act.

 23        THE COURT REPORTER:  Excuse me.  This is the

 24  court reporter.  You cut out on the address 6500, then
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 01  it went blank.

 02        MR. FRAMPTON:  Okay.  6500 North Clark Street in

 03  Chicago.  And (c) pay costs of issuance and other costs

 04  related to the Bond all as permitted under the Illinois

 05  Finance Authority Act.

 06                  Howard Brown Health provides

 07  comprehensive healthcare and social services to a broad

 08  community with a focus on lesbian, gay, bi-sexual,

 09  transgender and queer or "LGBTQ" communities at

 10  multiple locations throughout Chicago and has been a

 11  national leader in engaging in medical research to

 12  improve healthcare and treatments for diseases

 13  including hepatitis B and HIV/AIDS.

 14                  Wintrust will be the purchasing bank

 15  for the Series 2022 Bond and will be assuming all

 16  default risk.  With respect to jobs, Howard Brown

 17  projects (1) a total of 360 construction jobs during

 18  the 16-month construction period and (2) 69 new hires

 19  within two years of completing the 3501 North Halsted

 20  facility.

 21                  Moving on to the confidential section.

 22  The financial presentation begins on Conduit PDF

 23  page 20, which is page 7 of the report.  Net patient

 24  revenues have comprised 88 percent of Howard Brown's
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 01  operating revenues and have been the principal driver

 02  of revenue growth, which has gone from a 171 million in

 03  2019 to 211 million in 2021.  Expanded services and

 04  capacity, including the opening of a new youth center

 05  in 2021, have also driven this recent growth.  Through

 06  management's diligent control of operating expenses,

 07  Howard Brown's operating net income, EBIDTA and debt

 08  service coverage have each improved despite this rapid

 09  revenue growth.  In particular, Howard Brown's debt

 10  service coverage has improved from an already strong

 11  6.85 times in 2019 to over 12 times coverage in 2021.

 12  Howard Brown's successful management of this rapid

 13  growth has also been evidenced by improving balance

 14  sheet strength, as evidenced by improving days cash and

 15  investment balances, which have improved from 131 days

 16  as of June 30, 2019, to 185 days, just over 6 months

 17  cash, as of June 30, 2021.  Does any Member have any

 18  questions or comments?

 19                  (No verbal response.)

 20        MR. FRAMPTON:  Thank you.  With that, I'll hand

 21  things over to Sara for discussion of Item 3.

 22        MS. PERUGINI:  Thanks, Rich.  Good morning.  This

 23  is Sara Perugini.  And Item Number 3 in your packet,

 24  which starts on page 23 of the Conduit PDF, is the
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 01  final Resolution for a not-to-exceed amount of

 02  37.5 million for Westminster Village, Inc., who is the

 03  Borrower.

 04                  The proceeds of the Bonds will be used

 05  to (1) pay or reimburse the Borrower for or refinance,

 06  the cost of acquiring, constructing, renovating,

 07  remodeling, and equipping the Borrower's continuing

 08  care retirement community at an approximate amount of

 09  $1 million; (2) refund all or a portion of the Series

 10  2018B and/or Series 2018C Bonds, (collectively the

 11  "Prior Bonds"); (3) pay a portion of interest on the

 12  Bonds and/or establish a debt service reserve fund each

 13  if deemed necessary or desirable by the Authority

 14  and/or the Borrower; (4) terminate two existing swaps

 15  on the Prior Bonds; and (5) pay certain fees or

 16  expenses incurred in connection with the refunding of

 17  the Prior Bonds and the issuance of the Bonds.  This is

 18  the first time this has been presented to the Members

 19  and it is a one-time final Resolution.

 20                  The Borrower operates Westminster

 21  Village, a continuing care retirement community located

 22  in Bloomington, Illinois.  Westminster Village consists

 23  of 243 independent living units, 60 assisted living

 24  units, 12 memory support units and 96 skilled nursing
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 01  beds.  The plan of finance contemplates the issuance of

 02  bonds in one or more fixed rate, tax-exempt series that

 03  will be sold in a public offering underwritten by

 04  Ziegler Investment Bank and sold in minimum dominations

 05  of $5,000.  The Bonds will not be rated.

 06                  As fully discussed under board action

 07  on page 25 of the PDF, the Borrower is asking for a

 08  waiver of the Board policy set forth in the Authority

 09  Bond handbook, which requires nonrated bonds be only

 10  sold to accredited investors or qualified institutional

 11  buyers in minimum denominations of a $100,000.  The

 12  Borrower has informed the Authority that the Borrower

 13  will satisfy the conditions for such waiver because the

 14  Borrower is not currently in default on any bonds, the

 15  Borrower has not missed a payment date relative to any

 16  bonds in the immediately preceding three years, and the

 17  Borrower has issued in the immediately preceding seven

 18  years, specifically in 2017 and 2018, two series of

 19  bonds that were nonrated or rated below investment

 20  grade, in an aggregate total of not less than

 21  $40 million.

 22                  The Final Bond Resolution establishes

 23  an interest rate of not-to-exceed 6 percent on the

 24  Bonds.  As of March 17, 2022, the Bonds will be issued
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 01  as fixed-rate bonds at an estimated coupon rate of

 02  5 percent and a current estimated average yield to call

 03  of 4.25 percent.

 04                  Turning to page 30 of the PDF, you will

 05  find the confidential information starting with the

 06  Authority's fee.  Following are the audited financial

 07  statements and discussion of such financials.  As I

 08  mentioned earlier in the presentation, the Borrower

 09  issued bonds in 2017 and 2018 through the Authority,

 10  and those bonds were used to fund construction,

 11  renovation, and expansion of all types of units on its

 12  campus.  Many of these units were placed into service

 13  in 2020 and 2021, which was unfortunate timing in light

 14  of COVID.  The financials reflect the Borrower not

 15  hitting its forecasted fill-up periods as well as

 16  losing occupants during COVID.  Due to debt service

 17  coverage ratio of 1.15 for fiscal year 2021, the

 18  Borrower called in a consultant, and the report was

 19  posted on EMMA in October 2021.

 20                  Management continues to work diligently

 21  to stabilize and increase occupancy across campus and

 22  fill its newly expanded area.  Occupancy and fill

 23  trends have been positive in the six-month period ended

 24  December 31, 2020, and are in line with the
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 01  consultant's forecasted projections.  Does any Member

 02  have any comments or questions?

 03                  (No verbal response.)

 04        MS. PERUGINI:  Thank you.

 05        MR. FRAMPTON:  This is Rich Frampton.  Thank you,

 06  Sara.

 07                  Next we'll move on to the Conduit

 08  Financing Resolutions, beginning with Item 4 for

 09  CenterPoint Terminal Railroad LLC.  Item 4 is a

 10  Resolution relating to the IFA Series 2020 Bonds issued

 11  on behalf of CenterPoint Joliet Terminal Railroad LLC

 12  (hereinafter "CenterPoint") which financed a portion of

 13  the construction, build-out and equipment costs

 14  incurred in connection with the development of the

 15  CenterPoint Intermodal Center-Joliet project.  The

 16  $150 million Series 2020 Bonds were purchased initially

 17  by a multi-bank syndicate that included U.S. Bank,

 18  National Association, Regions Bank, N.A., and PNC Bank,

 19  N.A. as the direct bond purchasers (and, collectively,

 20  hereinafter the "Lenders").

 21                  The accompanying Resolution will

 22  authorize the Authority to execute and deliver a First

 23  Amendment to the Indenture of Trust between the

 24  Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
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 01  Association resulting from amendments of the Bank

 02  Agreement between CenterPoint and the Lenders.  The

 03  amendments to the Bank Agreement will amend certain

 04  definitions to replace current LIBOR-based index rate

 05  definitions with new SOFR-based index rate definitions

 06  as well as adjusting applicable margins.

 07                  The practical effect of the requested

 08  changes in the Bank Agreement will be to provide

 09  CenterPoint with a new SOFR-based interest rate plus a

 10  credit spread for its next interest rate period of

 11  three years.  The new interest rate period of three

 12  years will also provide for two additional one-year

 13  extension options.  As proposed, the new terms will

 14  become effective as of June 4, 2022.  That is the

 15  expiration date of the initial two-year interest rate

 16  period established in 2020.

 17                  As a result of the First Amendment to

 18  the Indenture of Trust, the Series 2020 Bonds will be

 19  deemed reissued for federal tax purposes.  Perkins

 20  Coie LLP is expected to provide an opinion that the

 21  amendments will not adversely affect the tax-exempt

 22  status of the Series 2020 Bonds.

 23                  The third section heading on page 2 of

 24  the memo highlights the projected combined economic
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 01  impact of CenterPoint's Joliet and Elwood intermodal

 02  facilities over their 30-plus year build-out period.

 03  CenterPoint projects that over 7750 direct on-site jobs

 04  at the intermodal facilities will ultimately be created

 05  by on-site employers at CIC-Joliet and CIC-Elwood at

 06  full build-out.  Does any Member have any questions or

 07  comments?

 08                  (No verbal response.)

 09        MR. FRAMPTON:  Thank you.

 10        MS. PERUGINI:  Thanks, Rich.  This is Sara

 11  Perugini again.  Item Number 5 in your packet, which

 12  starts on page 39 of the PDF is a Resolution for the

 13  Lodge of Northbrook, the Borrower, which details

 14  amendments it would like to make with respect to its

 15  Series 2013 Bond and Series 2017 Bond, and accompanying

 16  document.  The Bonds were issued pursuant to a single

 17  Trust Indenture.

 18                  All of the Bonds were purchased and are

 19  currently held by Great Western Bank.  The Borrower and

 20  Great Western Bank have agreed to amend the Series 2013

 21  Bond, Series 2017 Bond, and the Indenture to, among

 22  other things, reduce the interest rate of the Bonds

 23  until the next adjustment date, to adjust the interest

 24  rate floor, to eliminate the optional prepayment
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 01  premium, and to modify the debt service reserve fund

 02  restriction.  The proposed Authority Resolution

 03  approves supplements to the Indenture, reissuance of

 04  the Bond, and the execution by the Authority of any

 05  additional documents necessary in order to implement

 06  the amendments and to evidence the approval of the

 07  amendment.

 08                  The supplements to the Indenture are

 09  authorized by the existing terms of the Indenture.

 10  Great Western Bank will approve the amendments by

 11  executing the amendment instrument.

 12                  These amendments may result in the

 13  Bonds as being treated as reissued for federal tax

 14  purposes.  Baird Holm is expected to provide an opinion

 15  that the amendments will not adversely affect the

 16  tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  The Authority's

 17  estimated fee and the Borrower's financials are also

 18  included.  Does any Member have any questions or

 19  comments?

 20                  (No verbal response.)

 21        MS. PERUGINI:  With that, I'll turn things over

 22  to Lorrie for Item Number 6.

 23        MR. FRAMPTON:  This is Rich Frampton.  Lorrie had

 24  indicated she was having some technical issues.  So I
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 01  will proceed to present Item 6.

 02                  Item 6 is a request from Mr. Daniel N.

 03  Feucht (hereinafter, the "Borrower") and the State Bank

 04  of Toulon (the "Bank") to seek the Authority's consent

 05  for the release of approximately 3.29 acres of farmland

 06  upon the Borrower's sale of that property.  The

 07  Borrower closed on the purchase of 17.76 acres of

 08  farmland in Stark County on December 22, 2021, with

 09  proceeds of $64,500 of IFA Beginning Farmer Bonds

 10  purchased by the Bank as the direct lender/investor.

 11                  The Borrower has negotiated for the

 12  sale of the non-contiguous 3.29-acre parcel for the

 13  same amount as in his recent bond-financed purchase.

 14  Hence, Mr. Feucht will not have any reported gains or

 15  losses as a result of this disposition of property.

 16  The accompanying Resolution authorizes the Authority to

 17  consent to the release of a portion of the mortgaged

 18  property as requested by the Bank and Borrower.  Does

 19  any Member have questions or comments?

 20                  (No verbal response.)

 21        MR. FRAMPTON:  Thank you.  With that, I'll hand

 22  things back over to Committee Chair Wright.

 23        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 24  Thank you, everyone.  I would like to request a motion
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 01  to recommend for approval the following New Business

 02  Items:  Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6.  Is there such a

 03  motion?

 04        MEMBER FUENTES:  This is Jim Fuentes.  So moved.

 05        MEMBER RYAN:  This is Tim Ryan.  Second.

 06        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Will the Assistant

 07  Secretary please call the roll?

 08        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.

 09  On the motion by Member Fuentes and second by Member

 10  Ryan.  I will call the roll.

 11                  Mr. Fuentes.

 12        MEMBER FUENTES:  Yes.

 13        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Ryan.

 14        MEMBER RYAN:  Yes.

 15        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Tobon.

 16        MEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

 17        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Ms. Watson.

 18        MEMBER WATSON:  Yes.

 19        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Zeller.

 20        MEMBER ZELLER:  Yes.

 21        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Committee Chair

 22  Wright.

 23        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Yes.

 24        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again, this is
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 01  Mark Meyer, Committee Chair Wright?  The ayes have it

 02  and the motion carries.

 03        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 04  Thank you, Mark.  Does anyone wish to make any

 05  additions, edits, or corrections in the minutes from

 06  March 8, 2022?

 07                  (No verbal response.)

 08        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing none, I would

 09  like to request a motion to approve the minutes.  Is

 10  there such a motion?

 11        MEMBER TOBON:  This is Eduardo Tobon.  So moved.

 12        MEMBER WATSON:  This is Jennifer Watson.  Second.

 13        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 14  Will the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

 15        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer on

 16  the motion by Member Tobon and second by Member Watson.

 17  I will call the roll.

 18                  Mr. Fuentes.

 19        MEMBER FUENTES:  Yes.

 20        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Ryan.

 21        MEMBER RYAN:  Yes.

 22        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Tobon.

 23        MEMBER TOBON:  Yes.

 24        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Ms. Watson?
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 01        MEMBER WATSON:  Yes.

 02        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Zeller.

 03        MEMBER ZELLER:  Yes.

 04        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Committee Chair

 05  Wright.

 06        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Yes.

 07        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again this is

 08  Mark Meyer.  Committee Chair Wright?  The ayes have it

 09  and the motion carries.

 10        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright.

 11  Thank you, Mark.  Is there any other business to come

 12  before the committee?

 13                  (No verbal response.)

 14        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Hearing none, I would

 15  like to request a motion to adjourn.  Additionally,

 16  when responding to the roll call for this motion, I

 17  would ask each Member to confirm that they were able to

 18  hear the participants, discussions, and testimony of

 19  this proceeding.  Is there such a motion?

 20        MEMBER ZELLER:  This is Brad Zeller.  So moved.

 21        MEMBER TOBON:  This is Eduardo Tobon.  Second.

 22        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  This is Jeffrey Wright

 23  will the Assistant Secretary, please call the roll.

 24        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  This is Mark Meyer.
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 01  On the motion by Member Zeller and second by Member

 02  Tobon.  I will call the roll.

 03                  Mr. Fuentes.

 04        MEMBER FUENTES:  Aye, and I confirm that I could

 05  hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.

 06        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Ryan.

 07        MEMBER RYAN:  Aye, and I confirm that I could

 08  hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.

 09        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Tobon.

 10        MEMBER TOBON:  Aye, and I confirm that I could

 11  hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.

 12        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Ms. Watson.

 13        MEMBER WATSON:  Aye, and I confirm that I could

 14  hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.

 15        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Mr. Zeller.

 16        MEMBER ZELLER:  Aye, and I confirm that I could

 17  hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.

 18        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Committee Chair

 19  Wright.

 20        COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT:  Aye, and I confirm that

 21  I could hear all participants, discussion, and

 22  testimony.

 23        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Chair Hobert,

 24  ex officio nonvoting.
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 01        CHAIR HOBERT:  I confirm that I could hear all

 02  participants, discussion, and testimony.

 03        ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER:  Again, this is

 04  Mark Meyer.  Committee Chair Wright, the ayes have it,

 05  and the motion carries.  The time is 8:59 a.m., and the

 06  committee meeting is adjourned.

 07  

 08                  (WHEREUPON, the above-entitled matter

 09                   was adjourned at 8:59 a.m.)

 10  

 11  

 12  

 13  

 14  

 15  

 16  

 17  

 18  

 19  

 20  

 21  

 22  

 23  

 24  
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 01  STATE OF ILLINOIS )

                       ) SS.

 02  COUNTY OF DUPAGE  )

 03  

 04        Michael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath

 05  says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing

 06  business in the City of Wheaton, County of DuPage and

 07  State of Illinois.

 08        That he reported the proceedings had at the

 09  foregoing Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Committee

 10  Special Meeting of the Members.

 11        And that the foregoing is a true and correct

 12  transcript of the reported proceedings so taken

 13  aforesaid and contains all the proceedings had at said

 14  meeting.

 15  

 16  

 17                  Michael J. Duffy

 18                  Certified Electronic Reporter

 19                  Notary Public

 20  

 21  

 22  

 23  

 24  
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Page 1 Page 3
1 ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 1| disaster declared. Therefore this meeting is being
2 CONDUIT FINANCING COMMITTEE MEETING 2| conducted viavideo and audio conference without the
3 3|physical presence of a quorum of the members. The
4 REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS of the Special Meeting of | 4|Executive Director, Chris Meister, is currently in The
5|the Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Financing 5| Authority's Chicago office at the location of the
6| Committee HELD IN PERSON and VIA AUDIO- and 6 meeting and is also participating video and audio
7|VIDEOCONFERENCE on Tuesday, April 12, 2022, at 7|conference. All memberswill attend this meeting via
818:31am. 8|video or audio conference. Aswe taketherall cals,
9 9| the response of the members will be taken as an
10| PRESENT VIA AUDIO- AND VIDEOCONFERENCE: 10 |indication that they can hear all members, discussion,
11 COMMITTEE CHAIR JEFFREY WRIGHT 11}and testimony.
12 MEMBER JAMES FUENTES 12 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
13| MEMBERTIM RYAN 13| Thank you, Mark. Will the Assistant Secretary please
14 MEMBER EDUARDO TOBON 14| call theroll?
15 MEMBER JENNIFER WATSON 15 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Certainly. Thisis
16| MEMBER BRAD ZELLER 16| Mark Meyer, with all members attending via video or
171 CHAIRMAN WILL HOBERT ex officio, nonvoting 17]audio conference, | will call theroll.
18| ALSO PRESENT: 18 Member Fuentes.
19 MARK MEY ER, Assistant Secretary 19 MEMBER FUENTES:. Here.
20| RICH FRAMPTON, Executive Vice President 20 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Juracek.
21| CHRISTOPHER MEISTER, Executive Director (in person |21 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEISTER: Member Juracek
22| and viaaudio and video conference) 22| advised me that she was going to be running late.

23| SARA PERUGINI, Vice President, Healthcare/CCRC 23| Thank you. Thisis Chris Meister.

24| LORRIE KARCHER, Agriculture Program Coordinator 24 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Ryan.
Page 2 Page 4

1 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Good morning. Thisis 1 MEMBER RYAN: Here.
2| Jeffrey Wright. Chair of the Illinois Finance 2 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Tobon.
3| Committee, Finance Authority Conduit Finance Committee. 3 MEMBER TOBON: Here.
4|1 would like to call the meeting to order. 4 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Watson.
5 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Good morning. This | S MEMBER WATSON: Here.
6|isMark Meyer, Assistant Secretary of the Authority. 6 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Member Zeller.
7| Today's dateis Tuesday, April 12, 2022, and thisisa 7 MEMBER ZELLER: Here.
8 | special meeting of The Authority's Conduit Financing 8 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair
9| Committee, has been called to order by Chair Wright at 9| Wright.
10 |thetime of 8:31 am. 10 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Here.
11 The Governor of the State of I1linois 11 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: And Chair Hobert
12|jssued a gubernatorial disaster proclamation on 12| ex-officio, non-voting.
13| April 1, 2022, finding that pursuant to the provisions 13 CHAIR HOBERT: Here.
141 of the lllinois Emergency Management Agency Act, a 14 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again, thisis
15| disaster exists within the State of Illinois related to 15 |Mark Meyer. Committee Chair Wright, in accordance with
16 | public health concerns caused by COVID-19, declaring 16 | Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Meetings Act as
17]dl countiesin the State of Illinois as a disaster 17| amended, a quorum of The Authority's Conduit Financing
18 |area, which remainsin effect for 30 days from its 18 | Committee has been constituted. Before we begin making
19 |issuance date. In accordance with the provisions of 19]our way through today's agenda, | would like to request
20| Subsection (e) of Section 7 of the Open Mestings Act, 20 |that each Member mute their audio when possible to
21| as amended, the Chair of the Authority, Will Hobert, 21| eliminate any background noise unless you're making, or
22| has determined that an in-person meeting of the 22 | seconding a motion, voting, or otherwise providing any
23| Authority and al of its committees today, April 12, 23| comment for the record. If you are participating via
24

2412022, isnot practical or prudent because of the video, please use your mute button found on your task
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Page 5 Page 7
1| bar on the bottom of your screen. You will be able to 111f anyone from the public participating via video
2| see the control bar by moving your mouse or touching 2| wishes to make a comment, please indicate your desire
3| the screen of your tablet. For any Member or anyone 3|to do so by using the "Raise Hand" function. Click on
4 |from the public participating via phone, to mute and 4|the "Raise Hand" option located at the center of your
5 [unmute your line. Y ou may press Star-6 on your keypad S| control bar at the bottom of your screen. You'll be
6|if you do not have that feature on your phone. 6| able to see the task bar by moving your mouse or
7 As areminder, we are being recorded 7 touching the screen of your tablet. If anyone from the
8|and a court reporter is transcribing today's 8| public participating via the phone wishes to make a
9 | proceedings. For the consideration of the court 9| comment, please indicate your desire to do so by using
10 |reporter, | would also like to ask each Member to state 10| the "Raise Hand" function by pressing Star-9.
11 |their name before making or seconding a motion or 11 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
12 otherwise providing any comments for the record. 12||sthere any public comment for the committee?
13 Finally, | would like to confirm that 13 (No verbal response.)
14| all members of the public attending in-person or via 14 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing none, | would
15| video or audio conference can hear this meeting 15 |now like to ask for the general consent of the members
16| clearly. 16 |to consider New Businessltems 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6
17 Chris, can you confirm that the video 17| collectively, and to have the subsequent recorded vote
18| and audio conference is clearly heard at the physical 18| gpplied to each respective individual New Business
19 |location of the meeting? 19]Item, unless there are any specific New Business Items
20 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEISTER: Thank you very much, |20|that a Member would like to consider separately.
21|Mark. Thisis Executive Director Chris Meister. I'm 21 (No verbal response.)
22| physically present in the conference room on the tenth 22 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing no need of a
23 |floor of 160 North LaSalle Street in Chicago, lllinais. 23|recusal, | would like to consider New Business Items 1,
24| can confirm that | can hear all discussions, 2412, 3, 4,5, and 6 under the consent agenda and take a
Page 6 Page 8
1| presentations, and votes at this morning's meeting 1lroll cal vote.
2|location. 1've advised security on the first floor 2 Mr. Frampton.
3 |that we have three public meetings today, of which this 3 MR. FRAMPTON: Thisis Rich Frampton. Thank you,
4|isone. Theagendas for al three meetings have been 4| Committee Chair Wright. | will begin with Conduit
5| posted both on this floor and on the first floor of 5|Business Item 1 for Lake Forest College. Item lisa
6| this building and on the Authority's website as of last 61501(c)(3) Bond Request. Staff requests approval of a
7| Thursday, April 7, 2022. Building security has been 7| one-time Final Bond Resolution for Lake Forest College
8 | advised that any members of the public who choose to do 8| (hereinafter, also, the "College") in an amount
9| so and who choose to comply with the building's public 9 not-to-exceed $50 million. The Bond Resolution will
10| health and safety requirements may come to this room 10 | authorize the Bonds to be issued in one or more series
11|and be physically present to listen to this morning's 11 or sub-series and be used to prospectively refund all
12| proceedings. At the moment, | am alone and there are 12| or aportion of the outstanding balances of three
13| no members of the public physically present with me. 13 |tax-exempt bond issues including the College's IFA
14| Thank you. 14| Series 2008, IFA Series 2012, and IFA Series 2014
15 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer. |15 |bonds. The aggregate outstanding balances of these
16 | Thank you, Chris. If any members of the public 16| bonds currently total approximately $31.5 million. In
17 | participating via video or audio conference find that 17 addition to these prospective refundings, the Bond
18 | they cannot hear these proceedings clearly, please call 18 | Resol ution authorizes bond proceeds to be used to (1)
19(312) 651-1300, or write info@il-fa.com immediately to 19| repay al or aportion of ataxable bridge loan and (2)
20| et us know and we will endeavor to solve the audio 20 | provide up to $17 million of new money financing for
21|issue. 21 |various capital construction projects, including campus
22 COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright. 22| academic buildings, and residence halls, along with
23| Thank you Mark. Next on the agendais public comment. 23| other miscellaneous improvements campuswide.
24 ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer. |24 Bondswill be sold in a public offering
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by BofA Securities based on Lake Forest College's

rating. The collegeis applying to S& P Global Ratings
for A rating on the Series 2022 Bonds and the College's
Series 2012 Bonds are currently rated BBB- by S&P.

Lake Forest Collegeisaprivate
co-educational higher education institution established
in 1857 focused on liberal arts, business, health
sciences, and pre-professional education with
enrollment of approximately 1690 students as of fall
2021, that's up from 1492 in fall 2018, a 13 percent
increase.

Next moving to the confidential section
of the report on PDF page 11, which is page 8 of the
report. There are two additional comments to note from
the confidential section. First, Lake Forest College
has a strong commitment to providing needs-based
tuition support. That commitment is evidenced in the
difference between gross tuition, which isreported in
spreadsheet Row 1, and net to after financial aid,
which is reported in spreadsheet Row 2. Secondly, the
spreadsheet and the PDF page 12 comments note that,
based on numbers runs prepared last week by the
financing team, payments on the Series 2022 Bonds,
which assumes all $17 million of proposed new money

Page 11
it went blank.

MR. FRAMPTON: Okay. 6500 North Clark Street in
Chicago. And (c) pay costs of issuance and other costs
related to the Bond all as permitted under the lllinois
Finance Authority Act.

Howard Brown Health provides
comprehensive healthcare and social servicesto abroad
community with afocus on lesbian, gay, bi-sexual,
transgender and queer or "LGBTQ" communities at
multiple locations throughout Chicago and has been a
national leader in engaging in medical research to
improve healthcare and treatments for diseases
including hepatitis B and HIV/AIDS.

Wintrust will be the purchasing bank
for the Series 2022 Bond and will be assuming all
default risk. With respect to jobs, Howard Brown
projects (1) atotal of 360 construction jobs during
the 16-month construction period and (2) 69 new hires
within two years of completing the 3501 North Halsted
facility.

Moving on to the confidential section.
Thefinancial presentation begins on Conduit PDF
page 20, which is page 7 of the report. Net patient
revenues have comprised 88 percent of Howard Brown's

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Page 10
bonds are issued, would reduce the college's annual

debt service payments by $125,000 per annum going
forward based on the proposed 30-year amortization
assumption.

Does any Member have any questions or
comments?

Next, I'll move onto Item 2 for Howard
Brown Health Center. Item 2 isa501(c)(3) Bond
request. Staff requests approval of aFinal Bond
Resolution for Howard Brown Health Center (hereinafter
the "Borrower") in an amount not-to-exceed $47 million.

Bond proceeds will be used to provide
al or aportion of the funds necessary to (1) pay or
reimburse a portion of the costs of land acquisition,
building construction, and equipping of a new
approximately 73,000-square-foot, five-story medical
and office building to be owned by the Borrower at 3501
North Halsted Street in Chicago, refinance certain
indebtedness previously incurred at its primary care
facility located at 6500 (inaudible) and (c) pay costs
of issuance, and other costs related to the Bond all as
permitted under the Illinois Finance Authority Act.

THE COURT REPORTER: Excuse me. Thisisthe

court reporter. You cut out on the address 6500, then

Page 12
operating revenues and have been the principal driver

of revenue growth, which has gone from a 171 millionin
2019 to 211 millionin 2021. Expanded services and
capacity, including the opening of a new youth center
in 2021, have also driven this recent growth. Through
management's diligent control of operating expenses,
Howard Brown's operating net income, EBIDTA and debt
service coverage have each improved despite thisrapid
revenue growth. In particular, Howard Brown's debt
service coverage has improved from an aready strong
6.85 timesin 2019 to over 12 times coverage in 2021.
Howard Brown's successful management of this rapid
growth has aso been evidenced by improving balance
sheet strength, as evidenced by improving days cash and
investment balances, which have improved from 131 days
as of June 30, 2019, to 185 days, just over 6 months
cash, as of June 30, 2021. Does any Member have any
questions or comments?
(No verbal response)

MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you. With that, I'll hand
things over to Sarafor discussion of Item 3.

MS. PERUGINI: Thanks, Rich. Good morning. This
is Sara Perugini. And Item Number 3 in your packet,
which starts on page 23 of the Conduit PDF, isthe
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final Resolution for a not-to-exceed amount of

37.5 million for Westminster Village, Inc., whoisthe
Borrower.

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used
to (1) pay or reimburse the Borrower for or refinance,
the cost of acquiring, constructing, renovating,
remodeling, and equipping the Borrower's continuing
care retirement community at an approximate amount of
$1 million; (2) refund all or a portion of the Series
2018B and/or Series 2018C Bonds, (collectively the
"Prior Bonds'); (3) pay aportion of interest on the
Bonds and/or establish a debt service reserve fund each
if deemed necessary or desirable by the Authority
and/or the Borrower; (4) terminate two existing swaps
on the Prior Bonds; and (5) pay certain fees or
expenses incurred in connection with the refunding of
the Prior Bonds and the issuance of the Bonds. Thisis
the first time this has been presented to the Members
and it isa one-time final Resolution.

The Borrower operates Westminster
Village, a continuing care retirement community located
in Bloomington, Illinois. Westminster Village consists
of 243 independent living units, 60 assisted living
units, 12 memory support units and 96 skilled nursing

. . Page 15
as fixed-rate bonds at an estimated coupon rate of

5 percent and a current estimated average yield to call
of 4.25 percent.

Turning to page 30 of the PDF, you will
find the confidential information starting with the
Authority'sfee. Following are the audited financial
statements and discussion of such financials. Asl
mentioned earlier in the presentation, the Borrower
issued bonds in 2017 and 2018 through the Authority,
and those bonds were used to fund construction,
renovation, and expansion of al types of unitson its
campus. Many of these units were placed into service
in 2020 and 2021, which was unfortunate timing in light
of COVID. The financials reflect the Borrower not
hitting its forecasted fill-up periods as well as
losing occupants during COVID. Dueto debt service
coverage ratio of 1.15 for fiscal year 2021, the
Borrower called in a consultant, and the report was
posted on EMMA in October 2021.

Management continues to work diligently
to stabilize and increase occupancy across campus and
fill its newly expanded area. Occupancy and fill
trends have been positive in the six-month period ended
December 31, 2020, and arein line with the
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beds. The plan of finance contemplates the issuance of

bonds in one or more fixed rate, tax-exempt series that
will be sold in a public offering underwritten by
Ziegler Investment Bank and sold in minimum dominations
of $5,000. The Bondswill not be rated.

Asfully discussed under board action
on page 25 of the PDF, the Borrower is asking for a
waiver of the Board policy set forth in the Authority
Bond handbook, which requires nonrated bonds be only
sold to accredited investors or qualified institutional
buyersin minimum denominations of a $100,000. The
Borrower has informed the Authority that the Borrower
will satisfy the conditions for such waiver because the
Borrower is not currently in default on any bonds, the
Borrower has not missed a payment date relative to any
bonds in the immediately preceding three years, and the
Borrower hasissued in the immediately preceding seven
years, specifically in 2017 and 2018, two series of
bonds that were nonrated or rated below investment
grade, in an aggregate total of not less than
$40 million.

The Final Bond Resolution establishes
an interest rate of not-to-exceed 6 percent on the
Bonds. Asof March 17, 2022, the Bonds will be issued

Page 16
consultant's forecasted projections. Does any Member

have any comments or questions?

(No verbal response.)

MS. PERUGINI: Thank you.
MR. FRAMPTON: ThisisRich Frampton. Thank you,

Sara.

Next we'll move on to the Conduit
Financing Resolutions, beginning with Item 4 for
CenterPoint Terminal Railroad LLC. Item4isa
Resolution relating to the IFA Series 2020 Bonds issued
on behalf of CenterPoint Joliet Termina Railroad LLC
(hereinafter " CenterPoint™) which financed a portion of
the construction, build-out and equipment costs
incurred in connection with the devel opment of the
CenterPoint Intermodal Center-Joliet project. The
$150 million Series 2020 Bonds were purchased initially
by a multi-bank syndicate that included U.S. Bank,
National Association, Regions Bank, N.A., and PNC Bank,
N.A. asthe direct bond purchasers (and, collectively,
hereinafter the "Lenders").

The accompanying Resolution will
authorize the Authority to execute and deliver aFirst
Amendment to the Indenture of Trust between the
Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
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Association resulting from amendments of the Bank

Agreement between CenterPoint and the Lenders. The
amendments to the Bank Agreement will amend certain
definitionsto replace current LIBOR-based index rate
definitions with new SOFR-based index rate definitions
as well as adjusting applicable margins.

The practical effect of the requested
changesin the Bank Agreement will be to provide
CenterPoint with a new SOFR-based interest rate plus a
credit spread for its next interest rate period of
three years. The new interest rate period of three
years will also provide for two additional one-year
extension options. As proposed, the new terms will
become effective as of June 4, 2022. That isthe
expiration date of theinitial two-year interest rate
period established in 2020.

Asaresult of the First Amendment to
the Indenture of Trust, the Series 2020 Bonds will be
deemed reissued for federal tax purposes. Perkins
Coie LLPisexpected to provide an opinion that the
amendments will not adversely affect the tax-exempt
status of the Series 2020 Bonds.

The third section heading on page 2 of
the memo highlights the projected combined economic

Page 19
premium, and to modify the debt service reserve fund

restriction. The proposed Authority Resolution
approves supplements to the Indenture, rei ssuance of
the Bond, and the execution by the Authority of any
additional documents necessary in order to implement
the amendments and to evidence the approval of the
amendment.

The supplements to the Indenture are
authorized by the existing terms of the Indenture.
Great Western Bank will approve the amendments by
executing the amendment instrument.

These amendments may result in the
Bonds as being treated as reissued for federal tax
purposes. Baird Holm is expected to provide an opinion
that the amendments will not adversely affect the
tax-exempt status of the Bonds. The Authority's
estimated fee and the Borrower's financials are also
included. Does any Member have any questions or
comments?

(No verbal response.)

MS. PERUGINI: With that, I'll turn things over
to Lorrie for Item Number 6.

MR. FRAMPTON: ThisisRich Frampton. Lorrie had
indicated she was having some technical issues. So |
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impact of CenterPoint's Joliet and Elwood intermodal

facilities over their 30-plus year build-out period.
CenterPoint projects that over 7750 direct on-site jobs
at the intermodal facilities will ultimately be created

by on-site employers at CIC-Joliet and CIC-Elwood at
full build-out. Does any Member have any questions or
comments?

(No verbal response.)

MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you.

MS. PERUGINI: Thanks, Rich. Thisis Sara
Perugini again. Item Number 5 in your packet, which
starts on page 39 of the PDF is a Resolution for the
Lodge of Northbrook, the Borrower, which details
amendments it would like to make with respect to its
Series 2013 Bond and Series 2017 Bond, and accompanying
document. The Bonds were issued pursuant to asingle
Trust Indenture.

All of the Bonds were purchased and are
currently held by Great Western Bank. The Borrower and
Great Western Bank have agreed to amend the Series 2013
Bond, Series 2017 Bond, and the Indenture to, among
other things, reduce the interest rate of the Bonds
until the next adjustment date, to adjust the interest
rate floor, to eliminate the optional prepayment

] Page 20
will proceed to present Item 6.

Item 6 is areguest from Mr. Daniel N.
Feucht (hereinafter, the "Borrower") and the State Bank
of Toulon (the "Bank") to seek the Authority's consent
for the release of approximately 3.29 acres of farmland
upon the Borrower's sale of that property. The
Borrower closed on the purchase of 17.76 acres of
farmland in Stark County on December 22, 2021, with
proceeds of $64,500 of IFA Beginning Farmer Bonds
purchased by the Bank as the direct lender/investor.

The Borrower has negotiated for the
sale of the non-contiguous 3.29-acre parcel for the
same amount as in his recent bond-financed purchase.
Hence, Mr. Feucht will not have any reported gains or
losses as aresult of this disposition of property.
The accompanying Resol ution authorizes the Authority to
consent to the release of a portion of the mortgaged
property as requested by the Bank and Borrower. Does
any Member have questions or comments?

(No verbal response.)

MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you. With that, I'll hand
things back over to Committee Chair Wright.
COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.

Thank you, everyone. | would like to request a motion

Bridges Court Reporting
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to recommend for approval the following New Business

Items. Items1, 2, 3,4, 5, and 6. Istheresuch a
motion?

MEMBER FUENTES: ThisisJim Fuentes. So moved.

MEMBER RYAN: Thisis Tim Ryan. Second.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Will the Assistant
Secretary please call theroll?

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer.
On the motion by Member Fuentes and second by Member
Ryan. | will call theroll.

Mr. Fuentes.

MEMBER FUENTES: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Ryan.

MEMBER RYAN: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Ms. Watson.

MEMBER WATSON: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Zéller.

MEMBER ZELLER: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair
Wright.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again, thisis

© 00 N oo g B~ W N P
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MEMBER WATSON: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Zéller.

MEMBER ZELLER: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair
Wright.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Againthisis
Mark Meyer. Committee Chair Wright? The ayes have it
and the motion carries.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
Thank you, Mark. Isthere any other businessto come
before the committee?

(No verbal response.)

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing none, | would
like to request amation to adjourn. Additionaly,
when responding to the roll call for this motion, |
would ask each Member to confirm that they were able to
hear the participants, discussions, and testimony of
this proceeding. Isthere such amotion?

MEMBER ZELLER: ThisisBrad Zeller. So moved.

MEMBER TOBON: Thisis Eduardo Tobon. Second.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright
will the Assistant Secretary, please call theroll.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Thisis Mark Meyer.

© 00 N o g B~ W N P

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
1
18
19
20

~

21
22
23
24

Page 22
Mark Meyer, Committee Chair Wright? The ayes haveit

and the motion carries.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
Thank you, Mark. Does anyone wish to make any
additions, edits, or correctionsin the minutes from
March 8, 2022?

(No verbal response.)

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Hearing none, | would
like to request a motion to approve the minutes. Is
there such amotion?

MEMBER TOBON: Thisis Eduardo Tobon. So moved.

MEMBER WATSON: Thisis Jennifer Watson. Second.

COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Thisis Jeffrey Wright.
Will the Assistant Secretary please call the roll?

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: ThisisMark Meyer on
the motion by Member Tobon and second by Member Watson.
I will call theraoll.

Mr. Fuentes.

MEMBER FUENTES: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Ryan.

MEMBER RYAN: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Tobon.

MEMBER TOBON: Yes.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Ms. Watson?

© 00 N o g B~ W N P
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On the motion by Member Zeller and second by Member

Tobon. | will call theroll.
Mr. Fuentes.
MEMBER FUENTES: Aye, and | confirm that | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Ryan.
MEMBER RYAN: Aye, and | confirm that | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Tobon.
MEMBER TOBON: Aye, and | confirm that | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Ms. Watson.
MEMBER WATSON: Aye, and | confirm that | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Mr. Z€ller.
MEMBER ZELLER: Aye, and | confirm that | could
hear all participants, discussion, and testimony.
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Committee Chair
Wright.
COMMITTEE CHAIR WRIGHT: Aye, and | confirm that
| could hear al participants, discussion, and
testimony.
ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Chair Hobert,
ex officio nonvoting.
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CHAIR HOBERT: | confirm that | could hear all

participants, discussion, and testimony.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY MEYER: Again, thisis
Mark Meyer. Committee Chair Wright, the ayes haveit,
and the motion carries. Thetimeis 8:59 am., and the
committee meeting is adjourned.

(WHEREUPON, the above-entitled matter
was adjourned at 8:59 am.)

Page 26
STATE ORILLINOIS)

COUNTY UPAGE )

Michael Duffy, being first duly sworn, on oath
says that he is a Certified Electronic Reporter doing
business in the City of Wheaton, County of DuPage and
State of Illinois.

That he reported the proceedings had at the
foregoing Illinois Finance Authority Conduit Committee
Special Meeting of the Members.

And that the foregoing is atrue and correct
transcript of the reported proceedings so taken
aforesaid and contains all the proceedings had at said
meeting.

Michael J. Duffy
Certified Electronic Reporter
Notary Public
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million (11)
minimum (2)
minutes (2)
miscellaneous (1)
missed (1)
modify (1)
moment (1)
money (2)
months (1)
morning (3)
morning's (2)
mortgaged (1)
motion (15)
mouse (2)
move (2)
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moved (3)
moving (4)
multi-bank (1)
multiple (1)
mute (3)

<N>

N.A (2

name (1)
national (3)
necessary (3)
need (1)
needs-based (1)
negotiated (1)
net (3)

New (14)
newly (1)
noise (1)
non-contiguous (1)
nonrated (2)
nonvoting (2)
non-voting (1)
North (4)
Northbrook (1)
Notary (1)
note (2)
not-to-exceed (4)
Number (3)
numbers (1)
nursing (1)

<0O>

oath (1)
occupancy (2)
occupants (1)
October (1)
offering (2)
office (2)
officio (2)
Okay (1)
one-time (2)
one-year (1)
on-site (2)
Open (2
opening (1)
operates (1)
operating (3)
opinion (2)
option (1)

optional (1)
options (1)
order (3)
outstanding (2)
owned (1)

<pP>

packet (2)
page (10)
parcel (1)
participants (8)
participating (6)
particular (1)
patient (1)
pay (6)
payment (1)
payments (2)
PDF (7)
percent (5)
period (6)
periods (1)
Perkins (1)
permitted (2)
PERSON (2)
PERUGINI (7)
phone (3)
physical (2)
physically (3)
placed (1)
plan (1)
please (8)

plus (1)

PNC (1)
policy (1)
portion (8)
positive (1)
possible (1)
posted (2)
practical (2)
preceding (2)
premium (1)
prepared (1)
prepayment (1)
pre-professional (1)
presence (1)
PRESENT (6)
presentation (2)
presentations (1)
presented (1)

President (2)
press (1)
pressing (1)
previously (1)
primary (1)
principal (1)
Prior (3)
private (1)
proceed (1)
proceeding (1)
PROCEEDINGS (7)
proceeds (4)
proclamation (1)
Program (1)
project (1)
projected (1)
projections (1)
projects (3)
property (3)
proposed (4)
prospective (1)
prospectively (1)
provide (6)
provides (1)
providing (3)
provisions (2)
prudent (1)
public (15)
purchase (2)
purchased (3)
purchasers (1)
purchasing (1)
purposes (2)
pursuant (2)

<Q>
qualified (1)
queer (1)
guestions (6)
quorum (2)

<R>
Railroad (2)
Raise (3)
rapid (2)
rate (11)
rated (3)
rating (2
Ratings (1)

ratio (1)
recommend (1)
record (2)
recorded (2)
recusal (1)
reduce (2)
refinance (2)
reflect (1)
refund (2)
refunding (1)
refundings (1)
Regions (1)
reimburse (2)
reissuance (1)
reissued (2)
related (3)
relating (1)
relative (1)
release (2)
remains (1)
reminder (1)
remodeling (1)
renovating (1)
renovation (1)
repay (1)
replace (1)
REPORT (5)
reported (5)
reporter (6)
request (7)
requested (2)
requests (2)
requirements (1)
requires (1)
research (1)
reserve (2
residdence (1)
Resolution (12)
Resolutions (1)
respect (2)
respective (1)
responding (1)
response (10)
restriction (1)
result (3)
resulting (1)
retirement (2)
revenue (2
revenues (2)
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RICH (6)
risk (1)
roll (11)
room (2)
Row (2)
running (1)
runs (1)
RYAN (12)

<S>

&P (2
safety (1)
sale (2)
SARA (5)
satisfy (1)
says (1)
sciences (1)
screen (4)
Second (6)
seconding (2)
Secondly (1)
Secretary (40)
Section (6)
Securities (1)
security (2)
see (2

seek (1)
separately (1)
series (20)
service (7)
services (2)
set (1)

seven (1)
sheet (1)
single (1)
six-month (1)
skilled (1)
social (1)
SOFR-based (2)
sold (4)
solve (1)
Special (3)
specific (1)
specifically (1)
spread (1)
spreadsheet (3)
SS (1)
stabilize (1)
Staff (2)

Star-6 (1)
Star-9 (1)
Stark (1)
starting (1)
starts (2)
State (7)
statements (1)
status (2)
Street (3)
strength (1)
strong (2)
students (1)
Subsection (2)
subsequent (1)
sub-series (1)
successful (1)
supplements (2)
support (2)
swaps (1)
sworn (1)
syndicate (1)

<T>

tablet (2)
take (2)
taken (2)
task (2)

tax (2)
taxable (1)
tax-exempt (4)
team (1)
technical (1)
tenth (1)
Terminal (2)
terminate (1)
terms (2)
testimony (9)
Thank (15)
Thanks (2)
things (4)
third (2)
three (6)
Thursday (1)
TIM (2
time (3)
times (2)
timing (1)
TOBON (15)
today (2)

Today's (3)
total (3)
touching (2)
Toulon (1)
transcribing (1)
transcript (1)
transgender (1)
treated (1)
treatments (1)
trends (1)
true (1)

Trust (4)
Tuesday (2)
tuition (2)
turn (1)
Turning (1)
two (5)
two-year (1)
types (1)

<U>

us (2
ultimately (1)
underwritten (1)
unfortunate (1)
units (5)
unmute (1)

use (1)

<V >
various (1)
verbal (9)
Vice (2)
video (10)
VIDEOCONFERENC
E (2
Village (3)
vote (2)
votes (1)
voting (1)

<W >

waiver (2)
WATSON (12)
way (1)
website (1)
week (1)

well (2)

went (1)

Western (3)
Westminster (3)
Wheaton (1)
Wintrust (1)
wish (1)
wishes (2)
work (1)
WRIGHT (39)
write (1)

<Y >

year (2)
years (5)
yield (1)
youth (1)

<Z>
ZELLER (12)
Ziegler (1)
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